
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk
Direct line: 01403 215465

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded)   Horsham.gov.uk   Chief Executive – Tom Crowley

222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

1

Census Joint Committee
Friday, 23rd September, 2016 at 10.00 am
Lewes Room, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham

Councillors: Gordon Lindsay (Chairman)

Brian Donnelly
Carson Albury
Jonathan Ash-Edwards
Dan Humphreys

Gary Marsh
Mark Nolan
Neil Parkin

You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business

Agenda

Page No.

1.  Apologies for absense
2.  Minutes

To approve as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 17th June 2016

3.  Declarations of Interests
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Committee

4.  Revenues and Benefits update 2016/17 inc. Q2 financial information and 
risks

3 - 10

5.  ICT Service Performance update 2016/17 inc. Q2 financial information and 
risks

11 - 28

6.  Urgent Business
Items not on the agenda which the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion 
should be considered as urgent because of the special circumstances

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

                    Report to CenSus Joint Committee
23rd September 2016
By  The Head of Revenues and Benefits (CenSus)

 INFORMATION REPORT
 

 CenSus Revenues and Benefits report.

Executive Summary
This report sets out the 16/17 year to date performance of CenSus Revenues and Benefits and 
activities undertaken by the service

Recommendations
The Joint Committee is asked to note the performance and activity of the Service.
.

Background Papers - None
Consultation - None
Wards affected - All
Contact  - Tim Delany 07889 721964

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2

2. Performance – 16/17
2.1 Benefits/CTS  - stats are at appendix 1. Overall Performance to the end of August has 

overall claims targets missed by 0.3 of a day and changes exceeding target by 0.1 of a day; 
work outstanding is currently less than usual for this time of year. 

2.2 We are beginning to experience the expected ‘delay’ in receiving UC information from the 
DWP; without any DWP backlog this is between 4 and 6 weeks. These cases relate to CTS 
claims only.

2.2 DHP – stats are at appendix 2. Expenditure has been closely monitored and is within 
expected budget for this time of year. However, see section 5 about the anticipated 
increase in DHP claims and consequent pressure on the budget from November 2016.  

2.3 Revenues  - stats are at appendix 3  –  CT collection is either on target or within tolerance 
levels.

2.4 NDR – collection is of concern (although the gap between collection and target has 
narrowed this month). Both Adur and Horsham now seem to be mirroring the Mid Sussex 
performance during last year. We have undertaken some work which confirms that there 
are no ‘black holes’ or unactioned work outstanding in the system. While there are no more 
summonses or liability orders being issued, the average amount owed in each case at the 
enforcement stage is higher than those at a similar point last year but there are not 
sufficient volumes to account for the percentage we are off target. We are currently 
undertaking an exercise to analyse those cases where NDR payments are in arrears and 
map our process to identify any delays, bottlenecks or inefficiencies in our current 
processes and consider what alternative or additional action may be appropriate to improve 
collection rates. We are also comparing the past and present NDR property base, collection 
profiles etc. to see what, if anything, has changed that may be affecting in year collection 
rates. 

2.5 While no consolation to lower than expected percentage collection of NDR, the amount 
collected for CenSus authorities is some £1.8m up on this time last year. In addition, some 
£2.1 m has been collected in respect of previous year’s debts.

3. Budget
3.1 The position outlined shows a surplus against budget to date of £78K for Census Revenues 

and Benefits, to the end of July. This is detailed in the table below. The staffing budget is 
overspending, whilst there is additional Enforcement Income and Grant income, which more 
than mitigate this. Significant variations are further explained below:

3.1.1 Employee costs –  Additional costs are a consequence of the use of agency staff to 
backfill posts while new recruits are being recruited and trained (see Paragraph 4 
below). 

3.1.2 Grant Income – Additional grant income has been received for new burdens in 
2016/17 in respect of Implementing Welfare reform; Single Fraud Investigation 
Service; Pension Credit Assessed Income; Real Time information and Fraud; Error 
reduction Incentive Scheme; Benefit Cap changes;  Universal Credit set up costs 
and Local Authority Data Sharing programme. It has been possible to manage the 
costs of these new burdens within existing resources and therefore the grant income 
received to date is contributing to the surplus achieved.

3.1.3 Fees and Charges – Additional income as a result of increased enforcement activity 
in the first four months of the year.

Page 4



3

Revenue Revised 
Budget 

Budget 
to date

Actual after 
prepay / 
accrual 

adjs

Variance

£ £ £ £
Employee Costs 2,750,368 916,789 941,425 24,636
Transport Costs 71,610 23,870 17,388 (6,482)
Supplies and Services 715,386 238,462 236,825 (1,637)

Total Expenditure 3,537,364 1,179,121 1,195,638 16,517

Grant Income 0 0 (63,470) (63,470)
Fees & Charges (565,330) (188,443) (220,679) (32,236)
Miscellaneous Income (3,000) (1,000) (132) 868

Total Income (568,330) (189,443) (284,281) (94,838)

Net Expenditure 2,969,034 989,678 911,357 (78,321)

4. Staffing/recruitment
4.1 Benefits recruitment of 4 staff has been a successful exercise. All recruits have now 

completing their training and are swiftly becoming effective members of the team. 

4.2 The recruitment of 7 members of staff for Revenues has been less successful with 2 failing 
to arrive on day one and 4 dropping out of training within 6 weeks of starting. Their reasons 
for leaving were various. Given that the Revenues recruitment process was more thorough 
than usual (we trialled using an established agency to employ their vetting procedures prior 
to the Mid Sussex recruitment process kicking in) it is difficult to reach any conclusions that 
would assist future recruitment exercises.

5. Benefit Cap
5.1 The revised Benefit Cap comes into effect on 07/11/15. We have now received the final 

scan identifying affected cases. The numbers are -–
Adur - 115 (including 16 currently capped at £25k)
Horsham - 129 (including 14 currently capped at £25k)
Mid Sussex - 143 (including 19 currently capped at £25k)

.
5.2 All claimants named on the scan were contacted by the DWP in July. We have met and 

shared the scan with RSLs and most of these have engaged with those of their tenants 
affected. We are now in the process of writing to affected claimants detailing the impact on 
their HB entitlement.

5.3 We are in the process of assessing the impact on claimants and the consequent pressure 
on the DHP budget. We will then discuss the way forward with each authority separately.

6. Single Person Discount (Council Tax)
6.1 We are currently undertaking a targeted review of SPD entitlement; this is being carried out 

geographically by authority with Adur’s SPDs being reviewed first.  We are using a credit 
checking agency to risk assess cases. We are telephoning those deemed to be ‘high risk’ 
and writing to those deemed to be ‘medium risk’. While it is yet early days, this appears to 
be an effective exercise. Details of the final outcome will be reported on completion.

6.2 The cost of this exercise will be in the region of £30k in total, with £8k of this being met by 
WSCC; the CenSus portion of the cost will be met from the current budget Significant sums 

Page 5



4

in excess of the overall cost will be raised following the cancellation of SPDs to which there 
is no longer an entitlement.

7. Next Steps
7.1 None

8. Outcome of Consultations
8.1 None

9. Other Courses of Action Considered but Rejected
9.1 None

10. Staffing Consequences
10.1 None

11 Financial Consequences
11.1  None

Page 6



5

App 1
2016/17 - performance -average days to process
HB/LHA

New Claims April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March YTD
YTD 

Target

Adur 16.2 20.6 17.2 17.5 18.2 17.9

Horsham 17.0 21.1 17.5 19.5 16.4 18.3

MSDC 19.0 20.3 17.7 19.0 16.9 18.5

CenSus 17.5 20.6 17.5 18.9 17.0 18.3

Target 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0  18.0

Changes April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March YTD
YTD 

Target

Adur 8.2 7.5 11.7 11.5 9.0 9.3

Horsham 9.4 9.5 12.3 11.2 9.3 10.6

MSDC 8.3 9.6 12.9 11.3 9.5 10.1

CenSus 8.6 9.0 12.3 11.3 9.3 9.9

Target 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0  10.0

CTRS

Claims April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March YTD
YTD 

Target

Adur 18.2 21.7 17.7 19.1 19.0 19.0

Horsham 22.9 23.5 17.8 23.4 16.9 20.8

MSDC 24.1 21.2 19.4 20.4 19.1 20.7

CenSus 22.1 22.2 18.4 21.2 18.2 20.3

Target 18.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0  20.0

Changes April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March YTD
YTD 

Target

Adur 7.8 7.2 12.4 11.6 8.9 8.9

Horsham 8.1 10.0 13.3 11.2 8.6 10.3

MSDC 8.5 8.0 13.4 10.8 9.6 9.9

CenSus 8.2 8.4 13.1 11.2 9.3 9.9

Target 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0  10.0

P
age 7



6

App 2

DHPs
Spent/committed as at 31/07/16

DHP claims Budget DHP commited Percentage of budget 
awarded commited

ADUR
U/O claims 10 6,990.86£             
Benefit Cap claims 6 -£                          10,438.99£          
Other' claims 21 9,773.91£             
Total 37 £102,994.00 27,203.76£          26%

HORSHAM
U/O claims 23 15,663.38£          11%
Benefit Cap claims 9 £0.00 26,935.26£          19%
Other' claims 23 11,238.36£          8%
Total 55 140,904.00£            53,837.00£          38%

MID SUSSEX
U/O claims 16 11,783.78£          9%
Benefit Cap claims 9 £0.00 11,535.28£          9%
Other' claims 31 25,369.96£          20%
Total 56 £126,392.00 48,689.02£          39%

P
age 8



7

App 3

16/17 Collection Rates
ADUR  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
CT Collected 11.2% 20.5% 29.7% 39.0% 48.2%        

Target 11.5% 20.8% 29.8% 39.1% 48.2% 57.6% 67.3% 76.6% 85.7% 94.7% 96.4% 98.0%
 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

NNDR Collected 10.4% 18.5% 28.6% 37.3% 46.8%        
Target 9.9% 19.8% 30.0% 39.3% 47.9% 57.3% 65.9% 74.2% 81.9% 90.8% 94.6% 98.0%

              
HORSHAM  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
CT Collected 11.3% 20.7% 30.0% 39.4% 48.9%        

Target 11.3% 20.8% 30.5% 39.9% 49.5% 59.0% 68.5% 78.0% 87.4% 96.7% 97.3% 98.8%
NNDR  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Collected 12.2% 19.7% 28.1% 36.8% 50.2%        
Target 12.4% 21.0% 29.4% 38.0% 50.8% 60.1% 68.8% 76.7% 86.6% 91.9% 96% 98.0%

              
MSDC  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
CT Collected 11.4% 20.8% 30.2% 39.4% 48.5%        

Target 11.3% 20.8% 29.9% 39.2% 48.3% 57.7% 67.5% 76.8% 86.1% 95.3% 97.0% 98.8%
NNDR  Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Collected 11.2% 19.0% 28.0% 36.6% 48.3%        
Target 10.7% 19.3% 28.1% 36.8% 48.5% 57.7% 65.9% 74.0% 83.4% 90.8% 94.6% 98.0%

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Report to CenSus Joint Committee
23rd September 2016
By the Director for Corporate Resources
INFORMATION REPORT

Not exempt 

CENSUS JOINT COMMITTEE - QUARTERLY ICT SERVICE UPDATE

Executive Summary

Purpose of Report

1. To report to the CenSus Joint Committee both the CenSus ICT service performance (see 
Appendix 2 for service performance graphs) and the budget position to period 5 2016/17 
(August 2016).

2. To report to the CenSus Joint Committee on the status and impact of any significant 
incidents that have occurred within the last reporting quarter (Appendix 3).

3. To present to the CenSus Joint Committee a summary status of 2016/17 ICT Project 
Portfolios. 

4. To report to Joint Committee on the progress of structural & process developments for 
Census ICT.

Summary

5. CenSus ICT workplans are currently on target.   To date they are a number of workplans 
not yet scheduled to start.  Resources are being identified  but delivery is likely to be tight. 
We will continue to monitor and reappraise the position.                

6. Work progresses at Adur-Worthing on implementing a Digital focussed strategy with a 
defined technology set. The Councils have signed off a project to move the data centre into 
the cloud, which will be implemented with the support of the local Census IT team. This 
work will feed into the wider ICT infrastructure strategy for the whole partnership, with the 
other two sites currently undergoing cloud readiness assessments.

7. Work is progressing to transform the approach to ICT related security matters (PSN 
compliance; Server patching; proactive system monitoring) from a Project to a Business as 
Usual activity; currently Server patching status is up to date and work is required  to 
streamline the processes for integrating the significant patching schedule into Business as 
Usual operations with the 3rd line resources available across the 3 sites. 

8. ICT Disaster Recovery – following the review by external consultancy a report highlighting 
areas of improvement was delivered.  Detailed planning work is now underway to address 
these areas including upgrades of software to leverage new features; and additionally 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 6
engagement has been made with external DR specialists to formulate a ICT DR/BCP 
service plan.  External supplier successfully tested the DR provision of the key Revenues 
and Benefits system.

9. The G/On remote access device has been steadily deployed across some of the 
Partnership sites when requested by the Business areas. In Mid Sussex, for Councillors this 
will reduces our reliance as will be replaced by mobile versions of the Microsoft productivity 
suite. In addition a new Microsoft Windows feature (Direct Access) that allows seamless 
secure connectivity for Council owned devices has been successfully trialled and plans to 
roll this out are being developed. 

10. A replacement, cloud based Service Desk solution has been procured that will improve both 
Incident reporting & metrics generation> It is also able to facilitate governance processes 
for Change, Asset and Configuration Management into a single database. 

11. Work has begun on the defining the necessary technical elements & options for the 
Technology workstream in support of the “Future Horsham” transformation programme.

12. The restructuring of CenSus ICT is complete. At the December Joint Committee meeting a 
paper will be presented outlining the future shape and role of the partnership following 
moves to cloud based infrastructure.

13. There was one cross Partnership P1 Level service interruption events of note during the 
quarter.

14. The CenSus workplan is now hosted in ‘Smartsheet’ and this allows all those involved in 
delivering it to update progress, identify resourcing issues and also plan for any 
dependencies with other related work. Smartsheet also hosts partner specific ICT 
workplans to ensure CenSus wide work and local work is coordinated and resourced 
appropriately. This helps to manage the risks of configuration and change across the 
partnership.

15. The table below summarises progress on the CenSus workplans. There are no issues to 
report. 

Page 12



Agenda Item 6
Table of CenSus Work Plans

Recommendations

The Joint Committee is asked to note:

I. The operational performance of the CenSus ICT service. 

II. The current status of the CenSus & site specific ICT project progress.

III. The progress on Project Portfolio Wokplans. 

IV. The status of major ICT incident occurrence within the last quarter. 

Reasons for Recommendations

i) To ensure the Joint Committee has sufficient information to carry out its responsibilities and 
is kept up to date with the current position in relation to the Census ICT service;

Background Papers CenSus ICT Performance Statistics
Quarterly Service Interruptions

Consultation Census Programme Management Board
Wards affected All
Contact

Jane Eaton, Director for Corporate Resources 

Email: Jane.Eaton@horsham.gov.uk

Tel / Mob:  01403 215300

Page 13



Agenda Item 6
Background Information

1 Introduction

This report contains the CenSus Joint Committee quarterly ICT service update covering 
current service delivery performance, financial & project status.

2 Statutory and Policy Background

Statutory background

2.1 N/A

Relevant Government policy

2.2 N/A

Relevant Council policy

2.3 N/A

3 Details

3.1 CenSus ICT Service Performance

The ongoing focus of CenSus ICT management across all sites continues to be to maintain 
a balanced approach to resourcing of Service & Project Delivery activities to ensure that the 
historic peaks & troughs of performance in both areas are minimised & that Business 
requirements are fully met in all areas. 

The rolling 12 month Service Performance details have been included within Appendix 2. 

3.2  CenSus ICT Financial Status 

2016-17 Census ICT Budget Monitoring April 2016 to August 2016
Operational Service
The operational spend for Census ICT as at August 2016 is £1.147m which is an over spend 
against the year to date budget of £46k. The main areas of over spend relate to staff and 
maintenance costs. The salary budget included a vacancy saving of one post which was not 
being realised with a fully staffed structure. There are now two vacancies, the Head of Census 
ICT and the Security Manager, so this over spend will decrease in the coming months. It 
should be noted that the Security Manager post is not being filled but there will be additional 
costs incurred within supplies and services as a managed solution is purchased. The majority 
of the overspend in maintenance costs is due to Commvault costs exceeding the budget, work 
is ongoing to look at the different site requirements with a view to managing the overspend on 
these costs for the remainder of the year. 
The full year forecast for operational spend is currently £2.694m which is £50k more than the 
2016-17 budget of £2.644m. However, this estimated forecast includes the assumption that 

Page 14



Agenda Item 6
there is no reduction in Commvault costs, the figure will be updated in September when the up 
to date information is available.
Revenue Projects
Expenditure totalling £108k has been spent on revenue projects to August 2016. The projects 
that have started and have activity are PSN , Firewall Upgrade and the Service Desk 
Replacement. The projects are within budget to date apart from the service desk which is £4k 
overspent.
Capital Projects
The capital expenditure for the same period is £106k against the SAN Replacement project.  It 
is anticipated that this project will come in around £34k below budget. 

Census ICT - April to August 2016
Original 
Budget 
2016/17

Budget 
2016/17 

YTD

Actual                       
April to 
August    Variance

Year End 
Forecast

Operational Revenue Costs £ £ £ £ £
Employee Costs 1,443,144 601,310 613,184 11,874 1,443,144
Transport Costs 8,520 3,550 4,581 1,031 12,542
Supplies & Services 643,338 268,057 276,724 8,667 640,280
Central Census Maintenance 548,787 228,661 252,983 24,322 597,692

Total Operational Expenditure 2,643,789 1,101,578 1,147,472 45,894 2,693,658

Original 
Budget 
2016/17

Budget 
Carry 

Forward 
Requested

Actual                       
April to 
August    Variance

Year End 
Forecast

Revenue Projects (Incl carried 
forward from 15/16) 375,000 71,000 107,899 -338,101 444,695

Capital ( Incl Carried forward 
from 15/16) 180,000 187,150 105,866 -261,284 332,224

3.3CenSus ICT Project Status

The following is a summary status report of the Current CenSus ICT projects. 
  

3.3.1 Existing Projects

CenSus: Infrastructure Monitoring – In Progress

Active Directory privileges (for system administration access & associated better 
management of security) have been reviewed & significantly reduced numbers of ICT staff 
now have such access privileges.
 SCCM (a tool for control of issuing of system updates) has been deployed on all 3 sites, & 
Server Security patching is now in an up to date status on all sites, although ongoing work 
continues to streamline the processes around patching with the agreement of the Business 
& Application Support teams to ensure this status does not decline. 

CenSus: GCSx email migration to Government Cloud – in progress

Page 15



Agenda Item 6
This work is being performed by a Government selected migration partner (Vodafone) – 
progress has been exceptionally slow.

All Horsham & Mid Sussex GCSx email accounts have been successfully migrated to the 
Government Cloud.

As at 5th September migration work for Adur-Worthing is 90% complete with local technical 
resource working with Vodafone’s specialists to complete the task before mid-september 
(w/e 16th)

CenSus: Migration to Microsoft Office 365 (Horsham & Mid Sussex) – In progress

The roll out of Office 365 (Cloud based email) for Mid Sussex is progressing with a pilot 
group of Members and Officers successfully migrated across to the Office365 platform. 
Mobile Device Management (MDM) is now being developed with an external support 
company to enable remote access via a corporate owned device. Mobile Application 
Management has already been developed for access via personal devices.

3.3.2 Additional 2015/16 Business Plan Projects 

The following is a summary status report of additional Census ICT projects.

Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Testing - complete

PTS Consulting completed the review of the backup and recovery at all three sites and 
delivered the report in Mid-August highlighting areas for improvement.

Planning work is underway to address the areas highlighted: Software Rationalisation and 
Upgrade, Tape Rotation, Off-site Backup storage/ Cloud Backup and DR/BC Provision.

Engagement has been undertaken with external DR specialists to formulate a costed ICT 
DR/BCP plan.  This work is being undertaken alongside the IaaS strategy development as 
one informs the other.

Additionally following an Audit Recommendation, the DR provision for the Partnership 
Revenues and Benefits system has been successfully tested by an 3rd external party. 

All the Councils are currently investigating the opportunities around rehousing their data 
centres in the cloud – the infrastructure as a service strategy. This will have considerable 
beneficial impact on disaster recovery and business continuity once implemented.

CenSus: PSN 2015/16 Programme – complete

PSN compliance certification is retained for all sites until May 2017. An external security 
specialist agency has been engaged for system Healthchecks against PSN requirements. It 
is noteworthy that the historic requirement for device audits was 10%; from January 2016 
onwards, all Council devices are scanned as part of the formal Healthcheck. 

The mid-year scoping (unofficial) Healthcheck that was performed concentrated on those 
areas of security that were not previously scrutinised in depth – the generated schedule of 

Page 16



Agenda Item 6
enhancements/upgrades necessary to comply with PSN has been managed as part of the 
Security team’s ongoing Project work.

Much value continues to be gained by the adoption of a best practice Change Management 
process for all sites & the necessary process rigour that was previously lacking in systems 
administration & change. The implementation of a new Service Desk tool in Q1 2016/7 will 
allow the process to be automated & aligned with Asset & Configuration Management 
processes that were not previously available.

Use of non-Council devices to access Council systems securely – ongoing

Excitor G/On tokens (that allow the secure connection of a non-council PC/Laptop to 
Council systems) have been deployed at both HDC & MSDC & are available for Adur-
Worthing for roles where there is a business requirement to access systems remotely & an 
advantage (both financially & from a productivity perspective) to do so.

For Council devices a Microsoft application (“Direct access”) that is significantly smoother in 
operation is being tested for deployment through August/September 2016.  
 

Page 17



Agenda Item 6
3.3.3 Major Council Initiatives requiring CenSus ICT Support 

The following is a summary update of those Major Council initiatives requiring CenSus ICT 
support: 

Adur - Worthing: Digital strategy - In Progress.

 E-mail & office productivity
 Outstanding. System now migrated to on-going support status. 

Compliance of Google service configuration to CESG (Central 
Government) security requirements has been confirmed through 
involvement of a CLAS consultant in March 2016. Medium term, a 
migration strategy for historic Outlook files will require to be implemented 
to ensure maximum financial (licencing costs) benefits are realised.

 Infrastructure as a service (IaaS) strategy
 In Progress. The council have approved the IaaS strategy papers and 

have authorised further investigation works leading to a procurement 
exercise.  

 New Telephony Service 
 Implemented and in Production.  Adur-Worthing are now operating the 

Avaya telephony service for both enterprise and contact centre telephony 
services.  Service support is provided by CenSus and the Digital teams 
backed off to the 3rd party supplier, Overline.

Future Horsham Business transformation programme – in progress.
 A number of avenues for investigation for transforming Horsham operations & 

driving through efficiencies & new ways of working are currently being evaluated; 
CenSus ICT & Horsham Applications team are involved from a technology 
perspective to support this work.

 In Process. Horsham Development team in conjunction with Census ICT are 
planning the implementation of NDL which allows more mobile working through 
customised forms and applications. As part  this project and to help the council 
move forward with better ways of working  Windows 10 / PC refresh business 
case will be put forward.

 Infrastructure as a service (IaaS) strategy: in progress. A specialised consultancy has 
started looking into and producing a report clearly identifying opportunities and 
quantifying the benefits of IAAS. This will have a number of options and scenarios. 
Network Managed service.

 As the core network is a key part of the Councils ICT infrastructure we now have 
a fully managed network support service with an external company, this allows 
for more support resilience and proactive monitoring.

3.4 Future strategy for Census ICT

The restructure of the Census ICT partnership is complete. Following this, work has been 
ongoing across the partnership to identify the roadmap for Census ICT for the next five 
years. Given all three sites are investigating the opportunities around cloud based 
infrastructure as a service, the shape and role of the partnership is likely to change.

A report to joint committee will be tabled in December outlining the proposed new approach.

Page 18



Agenda Item 6

3.5 Major ICT Incident Update

There was one cross CenSus service incidents at Priority 1 level within the quarter; for 
completeness, an overview of site specific P1 incidents of greater duration than 15 minutes 
has been included as Appendix 3. 

3.6 CenSus Project Portfolio 2016/17

In addition to the delayed Redhat Linux implementation Project for which an agreed 
implementation date has yet to be agreed, the following table summarises the Project 
Portfolio for 2016/17

Project Capital/ 
Revenue?

Total 
Cost

Delivery 
schedule

Status

Replace CenSus 
SAN

Capital £150K Q1/2 In Procurement process 
– on schedule.

Identity & Access 
Management tool

Capital £30K Q2 Options to be evaluated 
June 2016

Hardware & 
Consultancy

Revenue £60K Throughout 
year

Ongoing

Firewall upgrades Revenue £30K Q1/2 Work complete
PSN compliance Revenue £60K Q1/Q2 Work complete
Infrastructure as a 
Service (IaaS) review 
& forward strategy

Revenue £90K Phase 1 in Q1 HDC/MSDC work 
underway

Replace Asset 
Management 
Software

Revenue £25K Q2/3 Required functionality 
likely to be incorporated 
into the new Service 
Desk tool

LogRhythm Security 
Intelligence tool

Revenue £20K Q3 Not yet started

WAN exit strategy Revenue £50K Q2-4 Not yet started
Service Desk tool 
replacement

Revenue £40K Q1 Work underway

3.7 Restructure of CenSus ICT

Restructure is now complete with all outstanding recruitment activities completed.

4 Risk Management

4.1 A comprehensive CenSus ICT Risk Register is maintained & reviewed on a monthly basis 
by the CenSus ICT Management team; the current top 5 risks (& associated mitigation 
strategies) currently are:

Risk Description Controls

Insufficient capacity to cope with business 
workloads and unexpected demands (for 
example introduction of unforeseen 
legislation, office move, varying strategic 

Ensure that adequate resources are identified and included in project 
costs – ongoing.

Ensure staff resources with key skills are utilised across partnership 
Page 19



Agenda Item 6
directions of Partners) sites – encouraged wherever practical; emphasised to all relevant 

staff within the restructure process - being actively implemented.

Monitor ongoing service capacity levels (weekly) and take 
appropriate action as necessary – ongoing action

Failure to maintain service delivery in the 
event of disruptive events e.g. fire, flood, 
power failure, IT failure, Industrial action 
etc.)

Develop & maintain departmental business continuity plan in line with 
site specific BCP/DR processes – now in place. Audit (external 
consultants) being performed May/June 2016 to validate robustness 
of technology & processes together with IT staff knowledge.

Utilise planned power down windows at Data Centre to test 
processes – in place in conjunction with WSCC – occurs on a 6 
monthly basis to coincide with WSCC maintenance windows.

Penalties imposed due to failure to meet 
government agenda and or legislation

All CenSus management to keep abreast of changes and report 
implications to the Head of Census ICT – ongoing review through 
monthly Management meetings.

Failure to implement and manage agreed 
security controls

All server security patching is up to date – project in place to 
automate patching processes wherever possible & agree 
maintenance windows for patching & testing of servers with system 
users where necessary.

An ITIL compliant Change Control process has been in place for > 1 
year - has greatly reduced the risk (incidence) of errors & downtime.

Compromise of IT systems due to 
unknown vulnerability (software, 
hardware, physical and staff behaviour)

Training and awareness programme for staff

Patching of Servers now up to date. All non-essential administration 
accounts have been deleted to minimise the potential for errors & 
introduction of vulnerabilities. 

Page 20



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2.  CenSus ICT Performance Stats Sept 2015 – Aug 2016

% Calls Resolved Within SLA

CenSus overall

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Overall SLA Performance
SLA

Adur-Worthing

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Overall SLA Performance
SLA

Page 21



Agenda Item 6

HDC

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Overall SLA Performance
SLA

MSDC

Page 22



Agenda Item 6

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Overall SLA Performance
SLA

Help Desk

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Overall SLA Performance
SLA

Calls Raised – CenSus overall

Page 23



Agenda Item 6

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

CenSus - Incidents
CenSus - Work Requests

Calls Outstanding – CenSus overall

Se
p-

15
O

ct
-1

5
N

ov
-1

5
De

c-
15

Ja
n-

16
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n-
16

Ju
l-1

6
Au

g-
16

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

CenSus - Incidents
CenSus - Work Requests

Page 24



Agenda Item 6
Customer feedback survey results - % satisfaction ratings.

Ease of Contact

Aug-1
5

Se
p-15

Oct-
15

Nov-1
5

Dec-1
5
Jan

-16

Fe
b-16

Mar-
16

Apr-1
6

May
-16

Jun-16
Jul-1

6
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

AdurWorthing
Horsham
Midsussex

Satisfaction of Service from Service Desk

Au
g-

15

Se
p-

15

O
ct

-1
5

N
ov

-1
5

De
c-

15

Ja
n-

16

Fe
b-

16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

AdurWorthing
Horsham
Midsussex

%

Page 25



Agenda Item 6
Response time

Au
g-

15

Se
p-

15

O
ct

-1
5

N
ov

-1
5

De
c-

15

Ja
n-

16

Fe
b-

16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

AdurWorthing
Horsham
Midsussex

%

Page 26



Agenda Item 6
Customer Communications

Au
g-

15

Se
p-

15

O
ct

-1
5

N
ov

-1
5

De
c-

15

Ja
n-

16

Fe
b-

16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

AdurWorthing
Horsham
Midsussex

%

Page 27



Agenda Item 6
Appendix 3 - Quarterly Service Interruptions

There have been no CenSus wide service interruption events during the reporting quarter: - the 
following is a summary of site specific interruptions (P1 level) with lost Business time in excess of 30 
minutes.

Horsham.

No P1 incidents > 30 minutes in the reporting period.

 Adur Worthing.

14/07/2016
Issue: Loss of access to services hosted in Horsham from Adur-Worthng
Cause: KVM migration work resulted in a network cable being knocked from its socket.
Effect: Loss of access to the following services: 

 I@W
 Academy
 Uniform
 HotH
 IKEN

Solution: Reseated cable.  Incident was resolved within SLA (log to resolve duration 43 minutes)

31/08/2016:
Issue: Loss of network connectivity to Lancing Housing Office and Commerce Way sites
Cause: Failed “MO” box at BT’s exchange in Lancing.
Effect: Loss of site connectivity from 14:15 until approx. 20:30 on the same day.  
Solution: 3rd Party supplier resolution (replaced faulty part).  Note: A Major Incident Review for this 

incident is pending.

Mid Sussex.

No P1 incidents > 30 minutes in the reporting period.

Page 28


	Agenda
	4 Revenues and Benefits update 2016/17 inc. Q2 financial information and risks
	5 ICT Service Performance update 2016/17 inc. Q2 financial information and risks

